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DATE: 
December 19, 2007
TO:
Mayor Tom Potter; Commissioner Erik Sten
FROM: Gil Kelley, AICP, Director
Ordinance Title: *Direct the City not to accept new applications for the New Multiple-Unit Housing Property Tax Exemption Program until December 31, 2009, except for projects where 100 percent of the housing units are affordable to low-income households (Ordinance).  
1. INTENDED THURSDAY FILING DATE: December 26, 2007
2. REQUESTED COUNCIL AGENDA DATE:  January 2, 2008
3. CONTACT NAME & NUMBER: Barbara Sack, Planning, 503 823-7853 
4. PLACE ON:   ____CONSENT   __X_ REGULAR

5. BUDGET IMPACT STATEMENT ATTACHED:   _X___Y   ____N   _ __N/A

6. (3) 0RIGINAL COPIES OF CONTRACTS APPROVED AS TO FORM BY CITY ATTORNEY

ATTACHED:   ____Y   ____N   __X__N/A

7. BACKGROUND/ANALYSIS 

(Include: history of project, legal issues, controversial issues, citizen participation, link to current city policies, other governmental participation)

Introduction
This ordinance extends the suspension of the acceptance of new applications for the New Multiple-Unit Housing (NMUH) tax exemption program until December, 31, 2009, except for projects that are 100 percent affordable to low-income households under 60 percent Median Family Income (MFI).  (The suspension was formerly known as the moratorium on accepting new applications.)  The current deadline expires on December 31, 2007.  

In October 2005, City Council adopted a 6-month suspension of the acceptance of new applications for the NMUH program after Council had denied a tax exemption request for the Alexan South Waterfront rental housing project. Council had not come to an agreement on whether the project met current City housing priorities, and the suspension was intended to give the Council time to review the program’s policy goals and fiscal impact.  In July 2006, Council extended the suspension until December 31, 2007, except for applications from projects where the units are all affordable to low income households so that the program could be reviewed as part of the proposed Central City Plan update process.  This proposed extension of the suspension for another two years will allow City Council time to consider changes to the NMUH program as part of the update of the Central City Plan, now named the Central Portland Plan, which should be completed in two years as part of the Portland Plan process.  The Central Portland Plan will address changes that have occurred in the Central City housing market and provide guidance for future development.  
Background
The City’s Multifamily Tax Exemption Programs

The NMUH tax exemption program is one of two multifamily programs that allow a 10-year exemption on the improvement value of new multifamily or mixed-use projects. It is available in the Central City and urban renewal areas.  The other program is the City’s transit-oriented development (TOD) program that is available outside the Central City.  The City first adopted the NMUH program as implementation of the Downtown Plan housing policy that called for new housing construction to create a residential community in Portland’s Downtown.  The program boundaries were expanded to the larger Central City with the adoption of the Central City Plan of 1988, which called for new housing construction with a wide range of types, prices and rents.  The TOD program was adopted in 1996 to provide an incentive for new residential and mixed use development in transit-oriented areas to provide support for the regional light rail system and other public transit facilities outside the Central City.
Tax Exemption Program Review 2005-2006

After Commissioner Sten asked Council to pass an ordinance directing staff not to accept new applications for the NMUH program in October 2005, City Council and the Portland Development and Planning Commissions reviewed proposals to change both of the City’s multifamily tax exemption programs (the NMUH and the TOD).  In July 2006, City Council decided to extend the suspension of the acceptance of new applications for the NMUH program with the exception of 100 percent low income housing projects until December 31, 2007, and to consider changes to the program as part of other planning processes being initiated for the Central City.  In November 2006, Council voted to adopt changes to the TOD program regulations and boundaries.  The boundaries of the TOD program were extended to cover some of the areas that are covered by the NMUH program outside the Central City.  One of the assumptions made when extending the TOD boundaries was that the NMUH program boundaries would be revised to only cover the Central City. 
Recent Program Activity

Since the suspension of accepting new NMUH applications was adopted, the owners of two low-income housing projects requested and received extensions of their 10-year tax exemptions.  The owners of the Westshore Apartments asked for a one-year extension so that they could convey their interest in the project to REACH Community Development Inc.  The owners of the Fifth Avenue Commons Apartments requested a 20-year extension of their tax exemption so that they could maintain the financial viability of the project for the period of affordability required by the State of Oregon.  The State statutes that authorize the City’s NMUH and TOD tax exemption programs allow tax exemptions to be granted to existing privately-owned low-income housing projects that are subject to a contract with the State or federal government to provide low income housing for the length of their affordability agreements.  No new privately-owned low income housing projects have applied for the tax exemption.  
8. FINANCIAL IMPACT
Minimal fiscal impact is expected.  No new tax exemption requests under the NMUH program except for 100-percent low-income housing projects will be considered until after December 31, 2009, if Council adopts this ordinance.  The only projects that have asked for an exemption under this program during the suspension of accepting new applications are the two existing projects mentioned above that provide low-income housing and have affordability agreements with the State of Oregon.  There are two other projects with NMUH tax exemption that will expire in 2008.  At least one of these has an affordability agreement with the State of Oregon and could apply for an extension of their tax exemption.  Typically the affordability agreements with the State of Oregon run longer that the 10-year term of the tax exemption.  
RECOMMENDATION/ACTION REQUESTED

· Approve the ordinance to extend the suspension of the acceptance of new applications under the NMUH tax exemption program, except for housing projects that are 100 percent affordable to low income households until December 31, 2009.
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